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16 May 2018
Dear CLV‘IO
Swansea Bay City Region City Deal: Financial Arrangements

I refer to the ongoing discussions you and others have been having with my predecessor and other
colleagues in Welsh Government regarding the Swansea Bay City Region financing arrangements.
In particular these have covered how the authorities within the city region are seeking flexibility to
manage the financing of the City Deal projects, in the same way that authorities have flexibility to
effectively and efficiently manage the funding of their own Capital Programmes.

As set out in the Heads of Terms, the Welsh Government and UK Government have committed to
invest a combined total of up to £241 million on specific interventions, subject to the submission and
approval of the full business cases in relation to the 11 identified projects and the agreement of
governance arrangements. This funding is to be provided as capital funding. However, the Region
has indicated that the nature of some projects means they require revenue rather than capital
support.

Subject to confirmation by HM Treasury, the government capital grant funding is to be provided on a
flat profile with payments of the grant being made over a 15-year period. The local authorities within
the City Deal region are expected to manage the funding in respect of the individual projects in the
most cost effective and efficient way. There are no plans for Welsh Government to set additional
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funding mechanism beyond those already set out in the Heads of Terms and the standard
requirements of grant offers to ensure the maintenance of the highest standards of regularity and
propriety for the use public monies. Within this, we expect each local authority to optimise its own
funding position.

As indicated previously, the Welsh Government will expect the equivalent value of the allocated
grant funds to be clearly expended on the projects as per the business cases submitted.
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In light of the Swansea Bay City Region’s need for revenue funds to support some of its projects, the
Welsh Government recognises the four authorities will need to manage their capital funding so as to
enable revenue expenditure to be supported. If this is to be achieved (at least in part) through the
use of the local authorities’ available Capital Receipts, local authorities will need to have reference
to the latest Direction from Welsh Ministers on the use of capital receipts, issued under section 15(1)
(a) of the Local Government Act 2003 and the accompanying statutory Guidance on Flexible Use of
Capital Receipts.

This may involve each local authority allocating borrowing against other capital projects within its
capital programme, to maximise flexibility and make most effective use of resources (including the
use of Reserves). This will be a matter for the local authorities concerned, provided they clearly
identify that the total value of the City Deal funding provided has been incurred as expenditure on
City Deal projects.

As was set out in the Heads of Terms, the Swansea Bay City Region will need to work with the UK
Government and the Welsh Government to develop an agreed implementation, monitoring and
evaluation plan for whole Deal which sets out the proposed approach to evaluating the impact of
delivery.

Linked to this, as part of the grant procedures, the authorities will need to demonstrate clearly that
all expenditure has been incurred on each project in line with the relevant business case. This is in
line with the City Deal ethos of local accountability, where we have already set out in our letter of 7
July 2017 to the City Deal Accountable Officer (Mark James) that we do not intend to impose
additional terms and conditions on the grant offers beyond those required as a matter of course to
ensure financial propriety and good governance.

I hope this letter gives you and your colleagues within the City Region sufficient reassurance and
confidence in relation to the available funding flexibilities to ensure all the projects can be delivered.

Yours sincerely
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Judith Cole
Deputy Director
Local Government Finance Policy, Workforce and Social Partnerships



